TOWN OF LUDLOW, VT
SELECT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2024
6:00 PM
HEALD AUDITORIUM

AGENDA

Select Board Meeting February 5, 2024 - Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

Call to Order:

1. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

2. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s):
a. January 8, 2024
b. January 24, 2024 — Joint Select Board & Trustees Meeting

3. Comments from Citizens:

4. Annual Town Meeting Update:

5. Review and Approve Annual Liguor License Applications

6. Pedestrian Bridge — Mill St:

7. Planning Commission Rules of Procedure (Review / Action):



https://zoom.us/j/96352364337?pwd=N2k1RTIycVMyQXhjbThWcGJwWGJQQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Review and Possible Appoint Jean Strong- Council on Aging Representative:

Sons of American Legion Annual Coin Drop Approval:

FEMA Buyout Discussion- 6 Mill St. (Windsor County Youth Services):

Other Business:

Department Head Reports:

Municipal Manager Updates:

Set Date for Next Meeting: (March 4, 2024)

Possible Items for Next Meeting:

Sign Warrant Orders:

Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues:

Adjourn:



PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

January 8, 2024

HEALD AUDITORIUM

6:00 P.M.

Select Board

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile

+13126266799, 963 5236 4337#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)

+16469313860, 963 5236 43374,,,,*411479% US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Bob Brandt
Scott Baitz Justin Hyjek
STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara Ulla Cook
OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Paul Hansen
Expeditionary School Glenn Heitsmith

Marissa Foot Bruce Schmidt

1. Call to order

George Tucker, Jr.

Stephanie Grover

Noah Schmidt
Ryan Silvestri
Jeff Warfle

A. Brett Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All members present. He led the meeting

in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Consideration of any Changes. Additions or Removals to the Agenda

A. There were none.



Board of Selectmen January 8, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting

A. Brett Sanderson advised that the minutes are from the meeting on December 4, 2023,

B.

MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by Bob Brandt to accept the minutes from December
4. 2023 as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

4, Comments from Citizens

A.

B.

Eric Alden

1. Thanked the road crew for the phenomenal job they did clearing the roads.

2. Proposed that the town initiate a program for people, businesses, etc. to adopt a fire hydrant,
noting that the hydrants had not been cleared of snow. He suggested an incentive, maybe a
certificate or a thank you. He would be willing to help.

3.  Brett Sanderson advised that the Water department is responsible for clearing hydrants.)

Glenn Heitsmith

1. Suggested that the town also look into a program for businesses, people, etc., to adopt the
sidewalks in front of their properties.

2. NARCAN - Glenn Heitsmith advised that last there were 80,000 ODs in the US in 2022 and of
that number, 250 were in Vermont. He suggested that NARCAN be more accessible, possibly
by the defibrillator in town hall or other accessible locations.

3.  Fire Department Head Report - Glenn Heitsmith noted that there were 33 false alarms and 2 of
them were for 335 Ellison Lake Road.

4. Brett Sanderson advised that one false alarm is allowed. After that, any additional false alarm
for that property is billed based on the number of men and trucks involved.

5. FEMA Financial/Recovery Update

A,

Brendan McNamara advised that the town spent between $1.8 and $1.9 million in flood repairs.
That does not include the Wastewater Treatment Plant. They are still in the process of paperwork
and the town is on its 4th FEMA project manager. He said that he meets with the PM 2 times per
week and the new one is now up to speed, but we had to review everything we did with the
predecessors. FEMA Public Assistance Supervisor Tim Baker comes to Ludlow and helps
streamline the process

6. Town Re-Appraisal

A.

B.

Brendan McNamara advised that in 2026 the town will be at the end of the 5 year period and will
need to do a reappraisal.

Ryan Silvestri said that Ludlow is currently out of conformity. The CLA is 75 and the COD is 22.
This includes sales from 2021 through current. He said that they are planning on doing a statistical
appraisal where they will collect a sampling of 10% by boots on the ground inspections. This
includes sales for the last 3 years, major changes and renovations. The current software that we are



Board of Selectmen January 8, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6

mon

using will not be supported in 4 to 5 years. The new software that they are proposing will back up
the data every 12 hours. Everything will be backed up to the cloud. He said that Brendan
McNamara has a copy of the draft proposal.

Justin Hyjek asked if they do backups to a hard drive.

Ryan Silvestri said they back up to a partition on the server and do monthly backups to a hard drive.
Justin Hyjek noted that in 2019 and 2020, our CLA was at 96% and it has fallen by a wide margin -
are we expecting it to level off.

Ryan Silvestri said the market is still high - sales prices vs. assessed values. We need to bring the
CLA back to 100%. He said if we under assess, it affects every property in town.

Bruce Schmidt encouraged the board not to leave money on the table by doing a statistical
reappraisal. He said that it has been 20 years since they did the last town wide full reappraisal.
Ryan Silvestri said that part of the annual maintenance includes about 150 to 225 boots on the
ground reappraisals per year. The data has to be accurate for the State. He will collect samples of
more than 10% and will also do a field review of every property in town with the lister’s card. We
have been maintaining the database and are only missing the ones where people did not file for
permits. There are 3,600 improved properties. He said that the CLA is set in State statute and was
not changed for COVID.

7. Emergency Watershed Program Project

A,

moQw

Brendan McNamara advised that Ludlow has been approved for USDA funding of 75% with town
share of 25%. This will include spillways #3 and #5 and the river way by the Fire Station. There
are also 2 locations on Route 100 South where the river jeopardizes property. The projects are in
the engineering phase and will possibly go out to bid next month. The town match is $112,000 and
there is a question if that may also be FEMA funded.

Justin Hyjek asked if that would mean the town share would be 12.5%.

Brendan McNamara said that it is being debated if FEMA should pick up part of the town’s 25%.
Justin Hyjek asked about the State.

Brendan McNamara said we are looking into other possibilities.

8. FY25 Budget Work

A.

Brendan McNamara said that he went over the Department budgets with Ulla Cook. Overall, we

are in a good spot with the budget. The Department heads do a good job creating and maintaining

their budgets. He said that this draft does not include Capital and Long Term Debt. When they

meet on Wednesday, they will go over them.

Ambulance

1. Brendan McNamara said that the Ambulance Service had been proprietary. Last year, they
voted to change it to part of the municipal budget. This increased the budget $203,000, but it
will decrease the Articles and it will not be voted on at Town Meeting. At this present draft,
the overall increase in the amount to be raised in taxes will be about 4%. Most of that increase
is attributed to the 12.5% increase in Health Insurance costs. The 4% increase gives the
departments what they need. He said that both Buildings and Grounds and Planning and



Board of Selectmen January 8, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6

Zoning have hired new assistants. He added that the B&G person is half B&G and half
Community Center. He said that Chief Kolenda will be leaving effective June 30, 2024,
Brendan McNamara said that in this budget, he added a new position of Chief/Deputy as a
full-time position. He said that this town needs to consider a FT Fire Chief. They had 32 calls
this month and this person could cross train with Ambulance, the Health Officer and Fire
Warden. He added that other towns in Vermont had done this. He said this is still a volunteer
service. We need to give the community the best response possible. (He said this item was
not on the agenda because the Chief wanted to be able to tell his crew first.)

2. Bruce Schmidt said that this board needs to find a way to get information out to people. He

said that he requested the budget and did not receive it. He said they used to do the budget
meetings downstairs and have it on PowerPoint. He said that this is a big deal - 2,080 hours or
a Full-time fire chief. He added that the board will have to defend that at Town Meeting. He
suggested maybe starting in 6 months. He said this would not be a $50,000 position. He
encourages the board to consider probably going for 6 months as it is now.

3. Justin Hyjek noted that the board also did not get the draft budget until tonight. He added that,

in the past, they had more budget meetings. He said that he will compare this draft with the
previous one.

4,  Bruce Schmidt said the budget should be up where the public can see it (at meetings.)
5. Eric Alden asked if there is a Capital Needs Assessment to help plan for future needs. He said

town buildings are getting older and he suggested the need for new Fire, Ambulance and
Police buildings and that the board should plan for one multi-purpose building.

6. Justin Hyjek said that the Police Department was relocated into its present location in 2004.

He said that we have a B&G foreman who is responsible for maintenance of the buildings and
he would be happy to chat with him about the buildings.

C. The Board will have a Budget meeting on Wednesday, January 10th at 6:00 p.m.

9. Other Business

Bruce Schmidt asked for an update on the ARPA funds.

Brendan McNamara said he is looking into convening a meeting about that, but there has been no
movement to date. Other towns have formed committees. He said that the committee that was
formed in Cavendish was cumbersome. He said that funds have to be used by 12/31/2024 and we
need to discuss our options. He said that Capital projects would probably be the best call. We need
community input.

Justin Hyjek noted that some of the water lines in Ludlow were installed as far back as 1898 and
we are now dealing with blow outs. It would be beneficial to understand the aging process of the
water system and start upgrades.

10. Department Head Reports

A.

Reports are in. No comments



Board of Selectmen January 8§, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6

11. Municipal Manager Updates

A.  Brendan McNamara said that the board will start discussions for use of the ARPA funds.
B.  Short Term Rentals
1.  Brendan McNamara said the board needs to reconvene discussions on Short Term Rentals
(STR.) We will have a meeting on January 24, 2024. The board needs to decide if they
wish to pursue this topic or not. The Planning Commission worked on it. We need to take
a stand. We have heard public input.
2. Justin Hyjek asked Noah Schmidt if Cavendish was working on STR.
3. Noah Schmidt said that the Select Board has asked the Planning Commission to come up
with some possible suggestions.
C. FEMA Buyout

1.  Brendan McNamara advised that Windsor County Youth Services has applied for a FEMA
buyout and it will be on the agenda for the February meeting.

2. Bruce Schmidt noted that this will be the 4th FEMA buyout and the board should try to help
these properties. He said that one building is off the foundation and one is unplowed. He
suggested possibly hiring a consultant to help. These properties are the gateway to the
community. These people want out and the town should try to help.

3. Glenn Heitsmith said he has been in the buyout process for 4 years. He would love to stay in
Ludlow. Is there a land swap available? He said that the land across from the Timber Inn
should have always been left as a swamp. He said this last one was the 5th flood since he
moved here. He said they did hear from the adjuster today and he will be getting funds. He
said they should dredge the river.

4.  Said that he spoke on Thursday and Friday with the people from the State Economic
Development and Recovery and Ludlow is the poster child for FEMA buyouts for the last 4 -
5 years. Sam’s and Subway are going. This is not good for property owners or the town.
They are talking about a program to expedite project payments. The Highway Department
needs to look at options. He said the buyouts are not doing Ludlow any favors. We will end
up with nothing coming in via Route 103.

D. Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant program
1. Brendan McNamara advised that we are in discussion with Cavendish and Mount Holly to
apply jointly for a BRIC grant. The scope would be about $120,000 with regular match
E. ONSOLVE Code Red Alert System
1. Brendan McNamara said they will be kicking off the new system. It will shape the map
within the town and village limits. It will include social media, public information, text
message and phone calls. The messages will all be identified as the Town of Ludlow Alert
System or have a telephone exchange of “228” so that people will know where the
messages are coming from. It is user friendly.

12. Set Date for Next Meeting

A.  January 10, 2024 - Budget
B. January 24, 2024 - Budget and STR



Board of Selectmen January §, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6

C.  February 5, 2024 - Regular Meeting

13. Possible Ifems for Next Meeting

A.  Budget, STR

14. Sien Warrant Orders

A.  Brendan McNamara noted that Warrant Orders have been signed.

15. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues

A.  Brendan McNamara said that an Executive Session is needed for Personnel matters.

B. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded Scott Baitz to enter into Executive Session
for Personnel matters. Motion passed unanimously.

Board entered into Executive Session at 6:52 p.m.

MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Justin Hvjek to exit Executive Session,

Board exited Executive Session at 7:16 p.m. No action taken.

me o

16. Adjourn

A. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to adjourn. Motion passed

unanimously.
B. Meeting adjourned at 7:17 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek

écott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

Bob Brandt



PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN/TRUSTEES

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING
Short Term Rental Registry Public Discussion
WEDNESDAY, JANUART 24, 2024

6:00PM
HEALD AUDITORIUM
SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Scott Baitz Justin Hyjek George Tucker, Jr.
Bob Brandt
SELECT BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:
Brett Sanderson
TRUSTEES PRESENT:
Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek
TRUSTEES ABSENT:
Earl Washburn
STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara
OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Terrv DiNanoli Judv Pullinen
Lvnn Baldwin Andrea Goldman Pat Pullinen
Terrv Carter Astrid Lehman Bruce Schmidt
Alan Couch Steve Messina Noah Schmidt
Jackie Cromwell Steve Mevers Marissa Selleck
Marc Cromwell Julie Nicoll Rvan Silvestri

Call to Order

1. Justin Hyjek called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. No
changes needed to the agenda. He then opened the discussion to comments from the public.

Board to engage in public discussion regarding implementing a “Short Term Registry and
Consider action regarding registry

1. Eric Alden said that there has been concern that Short Term Rentals (STR) take away from
Affordable Housing (AFH.) Data shows this is untrue. It shows that most of the STR are used
part of the time by the owners. There has been concern that STR are overcrowded and do not
have proper egress or smoke detectors.  This can be the case at times. But, there is no data to



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting January 24, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6

show that they are more unsafe than other rentals. He said that Long Term Rentals (LTR) are
more unsafe because there is no process for inspections. He said that there is concern about why
there would be a fee to register a STR and where would those fees be used. There have to be
rules. He suggests that the fees be earmarked for specific uses such as AFH and possibly helping
people who are in need. He said that as Town Health Officer, he has responded to calls with
complaints about overcrowding, trash, no heat or hot water. Only one of those calls was for a
STR, the rest for LTR. If the town is going to implement a registry, he suggests it be for all
rentals, not just STR.

2. Alan Couch said that this discussion started 5 years ago, while he was on the Planning
Commission (PLANNING COMMISSION.) Originally, it was to create a list of properties
rented at STR with a self-reporting checklist (heat, hot water, smoke and CO; detectors, proper
egress, septic or sewer.) He said that people, who follow the rules, will follow the rules. Since
that time, this has all exploded and now people are complaining. This has been blown out of
proportion. If there is a registry, at some point the units will be inspected. We need to inform
people what is safe. The intent 5 years ago was safety. A committee was formed to come up with
a plan or suggestions for a rental registry.

3. Steve Meyers said that if you start taking away peoples’ property rights, it is a slippery slope.

4.  Andrea Goldman said that the PLANNING COMMISSION sent out a survey and 77% of the
respondents said there is not enough housing. She said that the rental registry was about health
and wellness. She said that is it very difficult to say that STR have no impact on town resources.
We need fees to cover the costs and protect the infrastructure.

5.  Steve Messina asked what the objective is and what will people get in return for the fees. He said
that as far as a drain on town resources, the renters spend money in town —shops and restaurants.
It creates revenue for the town. He said that all of his rental units are inspected and certified for a
specific number of occupants. We only advertise for the number of people the unit can hold. He
said that the real risk is LTR — there is no control over them and they should be included in a
registry.

6.  Terry Carter said that STR should be registered. The State says that we can’t regulate LTR. The
registry would include a permit, phone and email contacts for the owner and address. Occupancy
is 2 persons per bedroom plus 2. A 3-bedroom unit could hold 8 people. (2 per bedroom @ 3
bedrooms = 6 plus 2 +8.) The registry would have a yearly fee, tiered by number of bedrooms
with discount for owner occupied. A Division of Fire Safety certification would be required.
Noise levels would be curtailed to specific hours. Refractions would incur penalties. A company
would be hired to oversee the registry. She added that Plymouth, Chester, Killington and
Woodstock have rental registries.

7.  Lynn Baldwin said that the State has several bills pending regarding evictions. Attorneys’ fees.
She can’t afford to do a LTR, she is afraid because you can’t evict a tenant. There is no incentive
for her. The STR she owns helps pay her bills. She does not mind the permitting process if she
knows that the fees would be earmarked for specific needs. She objects to the Al Software
surveillance that she says is invasive and intrusive. They collect 125 points every 3 days and it
costs the town $40,000. The town should hire a local person to run the process with just the
needed information.



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting January 24, 2024

Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6

8.  Justin Hyjek said this hearing is about local not state regulations and the software company cost
is closer to $26,000.00

9.  Eric Alden said that to say that the state will not allow LTR regulations is misleading. You can’t
regulate where they go. He is not opposed to a rental registry but it should include LTR.

10. Justin Hyjek said that this discussion is 5 years long. A committee was formed to explore rental
registries and they held several meetings. It seems that many people object. He said this is about
safety, new market regulations and awareness, compliance, infrastructure. He said that the
studies about impact on AFH vary. We are not here to discuss that now. We are the last
Mountain town not to have a rental registry. What are we exposing the town to?

11. Brendan McNamara said the meeting was scheduled to make a decision if a rental registry is in
the best interest of the town and if so, ask the PLANNING COMMISSION to draft a proposal
with the process and then discuss the process. OR. Tonight, the boards can vote no and end this
discussion. If it is the best option for the town, then direct the Planning Commission to come up
with a plan for an ordinance.

12.  Justin Hyjek said this is the second joint board meeting on this topic.

13.  Scott Baitz said that he wants to see a plan from the PLANNING COMMISSION first. It should
be for safety only. He wants to know exactly what we are voting on before he says yes.

14.  Justin Hyjek said we need to give the PLANNING COMMISSION directions. If we vote to
move forward, the PLANNING COMMISSION will draft a proposal. If we vote no, this
discussion is over. He said he thinks it is warranted to pass the agenda.

15.  Alan Couch — POINT OF ORDER - asked if anyone present can make a proposal to the board
without going through the PLANNING COMMISSION to streamline the process.

16. Justin Hyjek said that this board has not given directions to the Planning Commission, but he
urges people to go to the Planning Commission meetings when this is on their agenda.

17. Steve Meyers said that all he has heard is safety, they are safe. He said you can’t legislate
morality. He firmly believes in property rights.

18.  Justin Hyjek said if there are regulations, some people will always cheat. We need to put the
metrics in place to standardize rentals. This issue is separate from LTR.

19. Eric Alden said that this board passing this back to the Planning Commission without direction is
what they have done before. Give the Planning Commission directions.

20. Bob Brandt said we already have regulations in place and he is not ready to decide, just because
other towns have registries. This has to be statewide and uniform. All rentals should be
inspected. We would be overstepping our authority to have one.

21. Steve Messina said that Justin Hyjek said safety, fairness and compliance. Also, LTR are not the
issue, there are processes in place to deal with them. A rental registry should apply to both STR
and LTR.

22. Lynn Baldwin said there is a bill in the state to regulate both LTR and STR.

23.  Justin Hyjek said that would take the onus off the town.

24. Steve Messina said if you want to see what is inside a STR; it is all on the website. There is no
visibility for LTR.

25.  Astrid Lehman said there should be uniform safety. If you make the registry voluntary, use it as

a positive. The town could refer to those who follow the rules. This started as invasive and
punitive. She asked how ski clubs are regulated.



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting January 24, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Justin Hyjek said this has been a 5- year process and is not punitive. Ludlow does not have
enough places for the skiers to stay.

George Tucker, Jr. said that this board has not said to ban or regulate to a punitive extent. The
key is safety. The number of people who come does stress the infrastructure. We have all heard
stories of disasters in rentals in other places, fires. Most people do follow the rules. But, if you
drive around town, you will see small houses with 15 cars parked there. He said that most people
don’t complain. Some don’t know how to complain. A registry would provide a way to process
complaints. If you operate a business, it is fair to pay a fee. The Fire, Ambulance and Police
departments as well as infrastructure have increased use brought by STR. They also bring more
traffic to won.

Astrid Lehman said that every property owner pays property taxes and STR do not pay less,
maybe more.

George Tucker, Jr. said if one group demands more resources, it equates. A registry would help
offset the costs rather than to increase the costs for all properties. We have a Fire Equipment
fund fee for all big projects.

Astrid Lehman said that she owns a STR and it is used 2 out of 7 days per week and is very
seasonal. It probably has less use than a full- time family home.

Lynn Baldwin repeated her concerns about 125 points every 3 days. She said it the cost is
$26,000 that would pay for a part time position for a local person. It is overreach to hire an Al
surveillance company to scrape data.

Steve Messina said that a 4- bedroom home with a family of 5 usage would be 1,825 (5 x 365.)
A unit rated for 8 on STR, used every night during ski season would rate 960 — less demand. He
said that vacation rentals are usually not rented out every day.

Eric Alden said that STR is no different from LTR — they are all businesses. If this board decides
to move forward, they need to give the PLANNING COMMISSION clear directions and the
funds collected from the fees should be earmarked for specific purposes.

Andrea Goldman said we can have a registry and STR would pay a fee to help defray costs to the
town for safety and infrastructure. Let the town manage the process.

Terry Carter said the Planning Commission did a village survey and there were 297 responses.
60% wanted a STR registry and 80% of those said yes to charging a fee. The primary concern
was housing.

Ryan Silvestri said that the Planning Commission gave an overview. Safety. He said at the last
couple of town budget meetings, it was clear — the town needs money for dams, ambulance, and
fire. He said the ambulance building is small and the fire station needs controls from the railroad
bridge. There are huge expenses looming and the town needs other revenue sources. The
Planning Commission is ready to outline a proposal. If the state does take over, the state would
collect the fees, not the town. Keep this local, with the stress on fire, health, safety, infrastructure
and education. He is onboard with STR and LTR.

Astrid Lehman said that the fees should go toward infrastructure and be based on revenue from
specific segments. The town should consider a Local Options Tax. You should treat everyone
the same and not single out one group.

MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to stop using Granicus and not
pursue a STR registry.



II1.

Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting January 24, 2024

Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6

39. Justin Hyjek asked if we are in the position to implement. Are there privacy issues.

40. Scott Baitz said the town is split.

41. Vote taken — 1 aye (Bob Brandt) and 3 nays. Motion voted down.

42. MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by George Tucker. Jr. for the Select Board should
task the Planning Commission to craft a no nonsense, concise, straight forward rental
registry.

43. Bruce Schmidt asked how this vote affects the village. This is a joint board meeting. Are the
village trustees going to vote separately?

44, Justin Hyjek said that 2/3 of the Trustees are here tonight.

45. Vote taken 2 aye and 2 nay.

46. Brendan McNamara said with a tie vote, the motion fails.

47. Pat Pullinen asked if the Planning Commission drafts go to the Select Board.

48. Justin Hyjek said this doesn’t create a registry.

49. Brendan McNamara said there is no direction for the registry.

50. Terry DiNapoli said that all STR pay room and sales tax. She said the state could mail letters to
property owners with safety guidelines. We need to educate the STR owners.

51. Bruce Schmidt asked when the Trustees will vote.

52. Justin Hyjek asked for a vote for the trustees (on motion in agenda item #43.)

53. Justin Hyjek aye, Bob Brandt nay. Vote split — no action.

54. Justin Hyjek said we have split boards. The motion failed.

55. Bruce Schmidt said he thinks the boards owe it to the voters to have full boards present and bring
this up for full board votes at their next meetings. He suggested this be put on both board
agendas. With 5 people on the Select Board and 3 on the Trustees, there would be a decision.

56. Steve Meyers said this started 5 years ago. The boards have voted, you have a decision. Be done
with it.

57. MOTION by Justin Hyjek to make agenda item #1 on the February board meeting, a vote
on the STR registry.

58. Scott Baitz said he would second the motion, if and only it all board members are present at
that meeting. We must have fill board.

59. Eric Alden suggested that the board double check the rules. It appears that if you have a quorum,
you can vote on a motion. He asked, if the motions had passed tonight, would they still be trying
to have a revote. It looks like you are trying to change the outcome of the vote.

60. Andrea Goldman said if there is a stalemate, it is a NO vote and that is exactly where we are.
Nothing passed here tonight.

61. Lynn Baldwin said that the other board members did not hear what was said here tonight.

62. Vote was taken 1 ave. 3 nays. Motion failed.

63. George Tucker, Jr. said that all board members were aware of this meeting. The boards were

deadlocked.

Other Business

1. There was none discussed



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting January 24, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6

IV.  Executive Session (If necessary)

1. None needed

V. Adjourn

1. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to adjourn this meeting.
Motion passed unanimously.
2. Meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

BOARD OF SELECTMEN:

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek

Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

Bob Brandt

TRUSTEES:

Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek

Earl Washburn



Jeffrey P. Billings Municipal Offic

Chief of Police Ph. 802-228-44
P.O.Box B Fax 802-228-55
Ludlow, VT 05149-0250 police@ludlow.
Ludlow, Ve.,,r mont
A Better Place To Live, Work & Play,
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION LETTER
DATE: January 31, 2024
TO: LUDLOW BOARD OF SELECTMEN,
XX At this time, | can find no reason why the Board of Selectmen should not issue a Liquor License

to the establishments listed on the request form submitted by Town Clerk Ulla Cook.

At this time, | would recommend that the Board of Selectmen not issue a Liquor License to the
establishment above.

Respectfully,

7

/ /t/,,,
/leffréy Billings

Chief of Police

A4ny Season Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlow
Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program



fmwre— g mem s - e et T

Town Received Applications Number of records :29 v
Displaying records 1 - 29 =

https://dliportal.my.vermont.gov/DLLLicenseManagment/a52/x?fcf=00Bt0000001B9Td&rpp_sticky=0&rowsperpage=250

DLL - Application Id

External Status . Business/Entity Name  Application Category Application For. Renewal Application: Start date of event' Application Type

-~ Application First Class
g;.é_s-“Appllcatlon B sentto Proud Bear, LLC First Class Restaurant/Bar o License
municipality License
I Application Outside
gzla.é.s-aAppllcatlon ) sent to Proud Bear, LLC OCP Consumption o Permit
municipality Permit
i Application First Class
gzls_é}-gAppllcatlon ) sentto KMS, Inc. First Class Restaurant/Bar e License
municipality License
T~ Application Third Class
g;.é_s-BApphcauon B sent to Off the Rails LLC Third Class Restaurant/Bar v License
municipality License
- Application
%_é.goApphcallon sent to flc.’().(': Run Golf Club, Tobacco I%b::‘c;c;o o License
municipality
B i Application First Class
o pplication sentto Offthe Rails LLC  First Class Restaurant/Bar . License
municipality License
i Application Outside
g;é.Q}Appllcatlon sentto Off the Rails LLC OCP Consumption v Permit
municipality Permit
e Application
3I?3Lé.9-9Apphcauon sentto Offthe Rails LLC ~ Second Class f;:?\r;g Class 27 T
municipality
ating Application
?;_SI’.O-OAppllcatlon sent to Off the Rails LLC Tobacco I?ct:aancsc: W License
municipality
I Application First Class
:E;):Ia_sla.g-sAppllcatlon B sent to Homestyle Hotel First Class Restaurant/Bar W License
municipality License
eatian Application Outside
gé_s;Lg-sAppllcatlon sent to Homestyle Hotel OCP Consumption f Permit
municipality Permit
N Application Third Class
g;sll.g-sApphcahon - sent to Homestyle Hotel Third Class Restaurant/Bar 2 License
municipality License
- Application Ouiside
%&3—8Applncahon B sent to E&r:nestyle Hostel  ocp Consumption £ Permit
municipality Permit
- Application "
DLL - Application - Homestyle Hostel, : First Class .
sent to First Class . ¥ License
34040 municipality LLC Hotel License
o lication .
DLL - Application - App Homestyle Hostel, . Third Class .
sentto Third Class ; i d License
34041 municipality LLC Hotel License
e Application .
DLL - Application - sent to Aminah & Rayhan, Second Class S_econd Class V License
34064 A LLC License
municipality
_ i nting Application : Tobacco
gl.cl’_seApphcatlon sent to Gl:rgnah & Rayhan, Tobacco Substitute W Permit
municipality Endorsement
R . Application Outside
3D4Lé.41AppI|cat|on sent to Calcutta's, LLC ocP Consumption v Permit
municipality Permit
- atinn Application
DLL - Application sent to Calcutta's, LLC Tobacco Tgbacco W License
34242 v License
municipality
N Application First Class
24L£.4-7Appllcatlon B sentto Calcutta's, LLC First Class Restaurant/Bar License
municipality License
DLL - Application - Application Calcutta's, LLC Third Class Third Class License
34248 sentto Restaurant/Bar

1/2



January 24, 2024

Town of Ludlow Select Board

Brendon McNamara, Municipal Manager
Depot Street

Ludlow, VT 05149

Please consider appointing me as the Town’s representative to the Area Council
on Aging Advisory Council. Because of my involvement with the Black River Valley
Senior Center | am very familiar with the role of the Council in our area.

Don’t hesitate to ask if more information is needed.
Thank you,

Jean Strong

7 Parker Ave

Ludlow, VT 05149
802-779-7132



Sons of the American Legion
135 Main St.
Ludlow, Vt. 05149

January 8, 2024

Town of Ludiow
Municipal Manager
P.O. Box 359
Ludlow, Vt. 05149

RE: Annual Coin Drop

Dear Mr. McNamara:

On behalf of the Sons of the American Legion we would like to request your permission
to hold our annual coin drop on Saturday, April 20th or Saturday, April 278 The
proceeds from this fundraiser will be used to support the Children’s Miracle Network and
various Veterans programs. As with previous coin drops the hours would be between
10:00 and 2:00 p.m. in the roadway adjacent to Veterans Park.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

John W. Taylor, Jr.

Commander



/W/C\’g\
Winpsor County YOUTH SErRvices
756 Main Street PO Box 357 Proctorsville VT 05153
January 3, 2023

To: Ludlow Selectboard

This is a request to the Ludlow Selectboard to consider supporting Windsor County Youth

Services in their efforts to participate in the FEMA Buyout Program for our property at 6 MILL
Street in Ludlow.

Please contact Jackie Hanlon at 802-228-6884 with any questions. We appreciate your
consideration.

cqueline Hanlon, Executive Director

%S«W



8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

January 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover — (out on leave)
. Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson
. Fire Department — Chief Peter Kolenda (Available at meeting)

. Highway — Ron Tarbell

Listers — Jeannie Stasz

Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele

. Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings (Available at meeting)

Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter



LUDLOW BUILDING & GROUNDS

January 2024

The following was performed the following work during the Month of January:

Performed general maintenance and cleaning of pickup truck, plow & sander.
General maintenance and cleaning of the Town Hall, Dorsey Park, Public Safety
Building, Community Center, and building checks at the BRHS.

Cemetery checks

Numerous daily waste disposal runs to the Transfer Station.

Performed daily walk-through’s and facility check of the BRHS

Performed monthly fire extinguisher checks

Shoveled and raked roofs after snowstorms and kept drains open

Lots of plowing, shoveling and sanding with several snowstorms

Met with oil company to repair and finish boiler servicing

Started working on seasonal painting at Dorsey park

Had heating company come out and over saw all cleanings and repairs that were
needed at buildings and coordinated to have a new heat system put in at water
department garage.

Helped oversee new drainage project at the cemetery

Setting up for events ongoing

Respectfullyubmitted, _—

7~

P o / L L~

Kevin‘"MacPherson
Building & Grounds Foreman



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - January

2024

Winter Highway Maintenance

Transfer Station
o Crushed & Load Dumpsters
» Demo
= cardboard
o Turning compost
Equipment Maintenance
o Police Cruiser Maintenance
o Ambulance Maintenance
o Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment
Trees & Brush
o Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage
Other/Miscellaneous
o FEMA documentation
Trackless is backin use
Assist with Water break (Elm St.)
Cold patching is on going
Open Culverts Drains/Ditches
FY 25 Budget/Capital budget

O 0O 0 0O

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell
Highway Foreman



/

L//

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludlow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR’S OFFICE
JANUARY 2024 MONTHLY REPORT

Have received many “preliminary pdfs” from CAl to review and approve. These are
changes that we submitted as a result of the most recent data. Once we approve
and review the changes CAl will provide us with an updated hard copy and digital
data.

Permit inspections have begun for the 2024 assessments. We currently have 163
open permits.

We have seen a slow down in property transfers and building permits, mainly due
to the time of the year.

Respectfully, .

(Jparnet /s e

Ludlow Llsters\&Assessor 's Office
./



Director’s Report
January 31, 2024

Youth Basketball: This past month all our teams continued their busy season with practices and
games. Over the course of the month of January we hosted 13 home games in the Ludlow
Community Center, and the spectator turnout was fantastic. We continued to enhance the
experience for the athletes by playing some pregame music. The parents continue to be huge
supporters by getting the athletes to practice, and games on times. Parents have also stepped up
to run the scoreboard when I have to officiate games which is a huge help. As always, when
January ends there are just a two more weeks left in the season until tournament time. Our 5/6
teams will play in a tournament during President’s week in the community center as well as
participating in the Flood Brook March Mayhem tournament. Every athlete and team continued
to improve as the season progressed.

Upcoming Events: The planning process has started for many activities and events as we are
planning to develop a fun filled Easter Egg Hunt. There certainly is plenty to do with less than 60
days until the big day. We are looking to develop a longer event that includes other activities to
pair with the egg hunt. The other exciting events that are around the corner are Green Up Day,
Sunday Summer Concert Series and the 4™ of July fireworks which will be sponsored by Magris
Talc. This year the fireworks display will take place on July 5™ on Okemo. We are reviewing
how the event went last year, that way we can work to improve it.

Community Center: The Community Center was consistently busy each night during the week
with our youth basketball program, however, the adults certainly take advantage of the space as
well by participating in our open gym, volleyball, basketball, and pickleball. The pickleball
group is using the community center space at least 4 times a week. A big change this year is the
community center is open on the weekends from 10 am to 3pm which made everyone excited. I
am working with everyone to ensure the space is available for weekend recreation. Athletes are
not the only ones using the space, we hosted the Boy Scouts, numerous meetings, a blood drive,
and two community meals. All of these activities and events brought new people to a space that
many did not realize that we had. Once the calendar turns to February, we already have more
practices, games, adult activities, and four rentals on the calendar. In the winter months the
community center continues to be utilized everyday of the week. As the community center
continues to be used on the weekend, we are going to analyze which hours are the best to be
open.

Recreation Projects: Throughout the month we analyzed our parks to pin point which facility
has the biggest need. We looked at Dorsey, the Little League Field, the dog park as well as the
mountain bike park. This was a great way to determine where our focus needs to go in the future.

Thanks,

Nick Miele, Director of Parks and Recreation




Jeffrey P. Billings

Chief of Police
PO.BoxB

Ludlow, VT 05149-0250

o

TO: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief Billings

ACTIVITY LOG

JANUARY 2024

INVESTIGATIONS:
Dead Body

Drug Overdose
Untimely

Sexual Assault
Fatal Accidents
Fights

Child Abuse
Burglaries
Larcenies
vandalism
Domestics
Accidents

Animal Complaints
Disorderly Conduct
Harassment
Drunkenness
Possession Stolen Property
Attempted Larceny
Juvenile Complaints
Trespassing
I1legal Dumping
Found Missing Person
Threats

Stolen vehicle
ARRESTS/CITATIONS:
DWI

Voyeurism

Domestic Abuse
UnTawful Mischief
Disorderly Conduct
Simple Assault ‘

5 COROOOOO

(=leleleleY o] OOOOI—‘OOONOHLMI—‘NH-D-

Simple Assault Police Officer 0
violation Release Conditions 0

Arrest on warrant 2
Larceny 0 |
PLs Any Seddon Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlo_u;

Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program

udlow, Vermont

A Berter Place To Live, Work & Play

Municipal Offic
Ph. 802-228-441
Fax 802-228-55¢
police@ludlow.\



MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS:
TICKETS ISSUED FOR:

Stop Sign
Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
village Ordnance
Parking violations
Alcohol

Cell phone
Marijuana

VERBAL WARNINGS FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
DWI

Parking violations
Cell phone

COOCOROoOCOOOOUO

HAORODOOCOWOOR



MISC. COMPLAINTS:

Noise 1
Suspicious Circumstance 14
False Alarms 11
AsSSist VSP 1
Assist Courts 0
Assist DMV 2
Assist Ludlow Agency 11
Assist Other Agency 1
Business/House Checks 69
Motorist Assist 14
MV Disturbances 0
Civil Matters 0
General Services 11
Trash violation 0

The Ludlow Police Department provided 3450 miles of routine patrol.

Foot patrol accounted for 3 hours.

Respectfully Submjtted;

Chief of pPolice



To:  Select Board Members
From: UllaP. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject: January
Date: January 31, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of January:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Finished recording in book 467 and working on 468. We now have 396 books or
237,600 pages scanned and linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the
computer. We are encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the
card file. We also now have all the land record books available on line from the
home page for Town of Ludlow. Pam is still scanning our property transfer tax
returns and has from 1971 to present in the computer.

Sent letters to property owners who have not paid either the first quarter or the
second. We have $49,653 due on the first quarter, $103,041 on the second and the
third quarter is due February 15 in the amount of $6,093,114.

Received 109 documents for recording during January which includes warranty
deeds, quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of
occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 18 property transfers totaling $3,354,000.

P



01/31/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 1 of 2

01:00 pm Current Yr Pd: 7 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund
Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget
GENERAL 29,062,955.23 28,528,520.98 98.16%
ADMINISTRATION 183,340.00 100,733.92 54.94%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 16,700.00 5,401.00 32.34%
CEMETERY 40,925.00 11,391.00 27.83%
TOWN CLERK 95,870.00 32,979.00 34.40%
TOWN TREASURER 114,000.00 104,094.93 91.31%
INTEREST/DIVIDEND 42,691.00 59,302.12 138.91%
FIRE 3,000.00 2,100.00 70.00%
COMMUNITY CENTER 2,500.00 1,319.00 52.76%
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT 0.00 0.00 0.00%
High School Building 7,500.00 3,500.00 46.67%
HIGHWAY 146,250.00 111,798.32 76.44%
INSURANCE 10,939.00 5,838.55 53.37%
LISTERS 3,500.00 0.00 0.00%
PLANNING 26,800.00 29,619.31 110.52%
POLICE 56,899.00 11,298.56 19.86%
RECREATION 15,600.00 17,775.75 113.95%
FLOOD 0.00 1,999,500.00 100.00%
SOLID WASTE 187,750.00 96,559.67 51.43%
CAPITAL 469,100.00 47,985.56 10.23%
Total Revenues 30,486,319.23 31,169,717.67 102.24%
ADMINISTRATION 304,434.00 222,831.28 73.20%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 207,570.00 169,301.33 81.56%
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER 247,505.00 148,905.40 60.16%
COMMUNITY CENTER OP 93,625.00 73,906.39 78.94%
PLANNING SERVICES 188,077.00 128,248.11 68.19%
LISTERS 78,435.00 40,579.64 51.74%
POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,228,280.00 769,553.32 62.65%
FIRE DEPARTMENT 167,970.00 72,011.83 42.87%
MUN. TRANSIT SYS 0.00 0.00 0.00%
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING 95,161.00 54,631.97 57.41%
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 1,128,910.00 585,374.05 51.85%
SOLID WASTE 270,800.00 211,387.45 78.06%
DISPOSAL 168,350.00 138,800.73 82.45%
CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 125,697.00 96,596.31 76.85%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 194,300.00 141,843.46 73.00%
FLOOD 0.00 2,956,332.55 100.00%
INTER GOVERNMENTAL 163,000.00 163,737.63 100.45%
APPROPRIATIONS 173,587.00 73,514.41 42.35%
INSURANCE 202,769.00 101,173.00 49.90%
VOTED ARTICLES 491,835.00 231,042.50 46.98%
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 23,607,866.87 11,546,653.00 48.91%
DEBT MANAGEMENT 354,609.00 274,065.12 77.29%
CAPITAL 439,600.00 513,101.07 116.72%
Total Expenditures 29,932,380.87 18,713,590.55 62.52%
Total General Fund 553,938.36 12,456,127.12



01/31/24
01:00 pm

Account

Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2

Current Yr Pd: 7 - Budget Status Report
General Fund

Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget

UCook

Total All Funds



LUDLOW TRANSFER STATION
January 2024 REPORT

The following containers were hauled out this month:

# Containers Container Size Content
5 40-yard MSW
2 40-yard C&D
0 30-yard Glass
1 30-yard Metal
2 40-yard Z Sort Recyclables
1 30-yard Cardboard Bales

2000 1bs. 1bs. Compost

0 30-yard Tires

Covered Pallets = 0; Covered Gaylords = 4; Non- | E-Waste —- FEMA (Non-Covered Pallets- 2
Covered Pallet = 1; Non-Covered Gaylords = 3 and
Broken Covered Gaylord = 0/Non-Covered Gaylord | Non-Covered Gaylords-2)

0 Boxes Lightbulbs
0 units Freon
0 units/0 Extinguishers Propane Tanks/Fire Extinguishers
0 Buckets Ballasts -
10 Boxes Batteries (Alkaline & Haz)
10 gallons/0 gallons Cooking Oil &Waste Oil

We continue to thank the Highway Dept. for crushing and packing off our containers and always being available
to assist us.

Tractor maintenance has been completed. Due to the recent month’s storms, we are continuing to shovel and clean
up the area to make it passable and safe.
A special thank you to the residents of our Town, who bring our staff baked goods weekly. It is a very nice and

appreciated gesture.

Until next month,

Qe P,

Pattie Potter
Transfer Station Manager



